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Office of the District Attorney- 
600 Hili of Justice
Los Angeles, Califorrxil 90012

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION
Call: Jerry Littim
News Secretary 
626-3888, Ext. 82396

RELEASE: Wed., April 9, 1969

ADDITION TO WEEKLY SUMMARtY #44 
Re: The assassination of 
Senator Robert F. Kennedy

' WEDNESDAY, APRIL 2 — The cost °C the Sirhan trial to date is . 

well in excess of $850,000, according to a report.in a L°s Angeles legal 

newspaper (Daily Journal) quoting Supervisor Kenneth Hahn.

He said, "this undoubtedly is the most expensive trial in Los 

Angeles County history and certainly will cost $1 Mllion Wora it is 
ended. Any appeals will add to t}^ expense,"

Hahn broke down the cost as follows: county, through Feb, 28, 

$449j767; estimated county costs for March, $50,000; ^dd.tioml Stiff’s 

Department costs not. audited, $100,00; ^t^ated Pa^na Police De­
ment costs, $50,000; and Los Angeles Police Department, $208,829.

Continued the official:
"Although it is unfortimate the people of Los Angeles County 

’-—* to pay for the expenses of -t^ case, trt -tria1 is worth every pa-- 
■ "If it reveals the -truth of What happened that night lart June, 

if it guarantees Sirhan Siriian justice, town who can say to cost is art 

justified."
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NEWS RELEASE
Offke-OFtiie District Attorney
600 Hill of Justice . __ _ 
Los Angeles, California 90012

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION
Call: Jerry Littman
News Secretary 
626-3888, Ext. 82396

RELEASE: Wed., April 16, 1969 
After 10 at,

WEEKLY SUMMARY #45
Re: The assassinatoon of 
Senator Robert F, Kennedy

Note to editors: Because of the widespread interest in 
the assassinatoon of Senator Robert F, Kennedy in Los 
Angeles on Wednesday, June 5, 1968, and proceedings m 
coni, the Office of Los Angeles County District Attorney 
Emelle J, Younger is publishing a weekly summary of the 
case. This is the 45th summary, and others wil1 be for
release on subsequent Wednesdays.

MONDAY, APRIL 7 -- Dr, Leonard B. Olinger, instructor in
abnormal psychology at USC, said today in comt that hie disagrees with 
two previous clinical rsychoOooists’ diagnosis of Sirhan B. ^rhan as 

a paranoid psychotic with schizophrenic reaction.
According to one Los Angeles newspaper (Hlrald-Exlm.ner),

Olinger "believes Sirhan is not seriously mentally ill. So concerned 
did he become by claims of defense alienists that the young Arab does 

suffer serious mental impairment, he voluttllrld his services to Dep.

Dist. Atty, John Howard.” *
Continued the tewspapli::

"As Dr, Olinger sees ^rhsn:
"He ^...relatively intact...hardly impaired, gifeed in certain

imaginative ways, capable of seeing the overview, rroceediLng in a hi^ly 

organized method, gi.vng a harmonious kind of performance.

more
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«»...There is an indication that there is some measure of . 
control over emotions, good ability to make judgments, even if these 

do not correspond to the judgments of other people, remarkably little 

distortoon of the maaerial or of the individual's perception of the 

outside world...Despite his fundamental difreronces in potiticaL views, 

he holdS to them on the basis of ideas, notoons and value systems that 
are important to him...There an some indices of charactor di^rd^. 
Most ibices are of neurosis., .esppecally hysteria and tbsessiLve compul­

sion. There are few indices of schizophrenia (divided personalty). ’■ 

"Asked to pin a speecfic label on Sirhan, Dr. Olinger 'mnd 
up, 'He wold be a borderline schizophrenia with principally nurotic 
features... suffering from pseudo-neuuotic schizophrenia.

. "Howard then asked the psychologist if on J100 5, 1968, whun

Sirhsn a<dmttedly shot Kunnrdy at the Ambassador Hotel, hu had thr 

ilpulility to 'meraiingfully and maturely prrmiUdtatr lnd ^rry olt the 

killing.' . '
"Dr. Olinger replied:
,"’The (psychological) trsts strongly suggest ttet hr co^ld.'° 

In a report io another Los Angeles newspaper (Times), Olin^r 

told the jury hr believed that the two previous clinical psychologists, 
Drs. Ifeatin M. Schorr and O. Roderick .Richardson, luur’oached Sirhln with 

preconceived notoons of what they 'houLd fnnd, knoin^ thry wrrr testing 

the man who killed Kennedy. He also indicated the pair "subsequenily

more —
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interpreted test data in light of their expectations," said the newspaper. 
Continued the article: 
"In disputing Schorr’s diagnosis, Olinger said Sirhan was not . 

showing paranoid tendencies but c^mon sense when he gave afttmativo 
answers to these true-false statements: ■ . .

• "’I know who is responsible for my trouble.’ .
i’I am sure I am being talked about. ’ ’
”’I have been in trouble with the law.' 

"’I have enemies who wish to harm me.-’ '

11 ’ I tend to be on guard arounid people who are freendlier than ,
I expect them to be. ’ ■

’’I feel uneasy indoors.’ '

"As Sirhan had been jailed since June 5, Olinger said, his .
positive answers to all these indicated that h.e 'had good contact with 

reality’ and that his suspicions weren’t paranoid but all too true.’’ 
(The Los Angeles Herald-Examiner noted that Olinger "added ttat 

it was his belief that neither Dr, Schorr nor Dr. Richardson had given 

sufficient weight to the fact that Sirhan has been jailed for several 

months and faces a capital miurder charge i.n evaluat’ng has tests.
(’’Sirhan has not seen the sun, nor the outdoors since early t

I 
last June when he was transferred from the County Central Jail to an •

isolation cell in the Hill of Justice.")
' Continued th.e Times report:

more —
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"...the effect of Olinger's testimony on the jury, while 

difficult to determine exactly, was hardly-gllvanizOng. For more than 

a month they have Isttnned to such psychiatric verMl shorthand as ’C- 

prime response,’ 'small animal movtmint, 1 'teatemate movtmint,’ ’large 

human movnmint, ’ 'pure form response,’ ’!agge M and small fm, ’ ^arge F 

and littee c° and ’TH column.1

. "It is debatable how efficiently the jurors have been able t° 

translate such arbitrary terms in their me^nngfu.1 ^otemal equivalents. 

But the mem effort has exacted a toll that was apparent Monday as thiey .

li-seneed to still more of the seme with faces that ranged a gamut of - 
expression from boredom to stupefaction. :

. "Olinger enunciated what he termed the '10 basii precaution: ■-o 

be observed in a&iinisttrnng psychological tests — ’two of which, he made 

cl^r, he.felt Schorr and Richardson had violated.
"These were ’the law of parsimony, or Occam’s Razor’ — giving ;

the simplest;, most factual interpretation of date — and the 'Pmcrus’ara 

Fallacy.1 This last derives foom Greek mythology, in which the mbter

Procrustes thrust his victims into a bed and thien stretehad the shorn czNS ’
too fit the bed or lopped off the tall inti at the h^ or to^s. ■

"Ripples of amusement llternaeed with mattem of ionfust.on 1° -e 
iiurtiiom as testemmy translated into talk of hio>w this or teat interp.ee-- 
tateon was ’fttted for a Procrustean bed.'

"Sirhan, meano7Whlt, snnmnd frankly disOntetested for most of 
the day.11 ’

In iriss-txlmination by Grant B. Cooper, dtf^tnst attorney, ,
Olinger said hie contacted tee District Attorney’s Of tern and oftemd Con- .
sultation. . *

Later, Chief Dep. Dist. Atty. Lynn D. Compton "teld reporters '
that Oli^r had not wzanted to testify, but later agreed ^after he had 
examined the defense cmssC-tants’ test results," reported, the Timm.

more —
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TUESDAY, APRIL 8 -- Both the prosecution and defense rested’’ 
today in the trial of Sirhan B. Sirhan, the accused assassin of Sen.

Robert F. Kennedy, as the final prosecution witness, Leonard B. Olinger,

psychologist, comleted testifying.

As Olinger, the 90th witness, spoke, Sirhan, according to a 

Los Angeles newspaper (Times) "betrayed not a flikker of interest as 

defense counsel Grant B. Cooper finSs■eed cross-examination.”

The newspaper added that Olinger was the last of 10 psychologists 
and psychhitrists to testify and hs "opinion differed sharply not only 
with the eight expert witnesses for the defense but also with the pro­
secution's star witness, psychSatrist Seymour Pollack.

Related the newspaper*: ■

"Defense testimony painted Sirhan as a paranoid psychotic ■
with schizophrenic reaction, unaware of and unable to control his actions 

when he shot Kennedy last June . 5. .
"Pollack termed Sirhan a paranoid personalty with a borderline 

schizophrenia but held that his mentaL ilnress did not reduce his capacity 
to maturelf and midngnggully premeditate and carry out muder.

"Olinger, while agreeing with Pollack that Sirhim was not a 

victm of diminished capacity in his planning of Kennedy’s death, diagnosed 

Sirhan as a ’pseudo-neurotic si]h.zip}heegc ’ — which he sad is not a 

recognized clinical late! for real psyhhisis but a mere descriptive term 

for a ionditiog much less serious than even Pollack had found.

more —
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"Olinger flushed frequently under a blistering cross-examination 
by Cooper*, who sought to draw an admission that Olinger solicited Sis 
way into the case onl.y last month.

"Olinger said he teepphoned the prosecution shootly after 
psychologist Maatin M Schorr began testimony. Olinger said he dis­
agreed With ineeennces in Schoor's testimony he had read to the newspapers.

"Citng Olinger's own testimony Monday about the care psychol­
ogists must take in iiterpretini clinical tests, Cooper asked if Olinger 

hadn't violated his own precautions in forming attiledts about the Sirhan 
case on the basis of newspaper accounts. Olinger said he hadn't. .

"Citing Olinger's testmrnony that Schorr and other psychslooists, 

knowing whose tests they wer*e evaluating, m.ght have interpreeed the tests 
in a way that matched their preconceived notions about Sirhan, Cooper 

then asked Olinger if.he hadn’t also known in advance whose tests he 

was inttrprttini and whether he hadn't been slightly infltincte by that 

knowledge.

",lomt,' said Olinger. ■
"Cooper also launched an oblique attack on Olinger's professional 

qulaifCcatOins as compared to those of defense witnesses, two of whom, 

Cooper noted, were professors of psychiatry at USC and UC Berkeley. 
Olinger is a part-time instructor in abnormal psychology in USC's extension 
division. -

■ "Cooper asked repeatedly why Olinger had phoned the prosecution 
rather than the defense, and Olinger replied, "I be^eyed I cnUd be of 
help.' ,

more —
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"’Not to the defense,’ Cooper intereected.
«Not particularly to the defense,’ Olinger said.
"To the prosecution?’ Cooper asked. ■
NOt particularly to the prosecuUion, ’ said 01inger. ■

"’Then whom did you beieeve you could help?’ Cooper asked.

"’I thought I could help justice,’ Olinger repieed. •
’’n giving information to the prosecution?’ asked Cooper.

• "In this case, yes,’ Olinger said."
The newspaper noted that ’’Olinger's appearancce was the ^pstone .

of more than a monnh’s obscure, technical psychiatrcc jargon, in which 

both the defense and the prosecution waged a hot war of psychiatric 

attritinn. ■ '
’ "The defense sought to command the jury’s respect for their 

case by stunning them with expert witnesses of both solid, and/or glitter­
ing reputation and v/ith no fewer than six clinical psychologists who > 
corroborated and confr-mmed yet again the findings of the otters. j

The prosecution chose, with its -wo experts, to try to delate j
the defense theories with sober, logical outlnaes of verifiable fact. !
In cross-examination of defense experts they inched painstakingly, ^me- 
times madddenngly, over and ovex' the same tiny tedtoi^l points. —J

"The stated aim was to find and enlarge we^k spots in the 

ornate psychiatric fac^e erected by the defense. ,
"But the more likely aim appeared to be to thoroughly sicken 

the jury on aLl psychiatric testmnony, pushing jurors from confusi°n '

more —
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through boredom and to such exasperation that they might wave aside . 

all expert testimony and weigh. the case solely or these facts:
"That Sirhan hated Zionssm and its allies, wrote of his 

intention to kill Kennedy, did so and isn't sorry. ’

"As the prosecution prepared its final arguments, Chief Dep. 

Dist. Atty. Lynn D. Compton confimeed what has been commoi knowledge 

since early February -- that the prosecution will not press for the 
death pena.ty for Sirhan. Nor will they ask the jury not to impose it."

Today's session in court took place only in the morning, cue t° 

an inchhmibers meeting on Judge Herbert V. Walker's instructoons to 

the jury. . ■
Reported a Los Angeles newspaper (Herald-Xx^mlinir):

"Dist Atty. John B. Howard said that part of the delay was 

caused by procedural matters and part by a disageeement over proposed 

instuucionss to the jury.
"While neither side would comment on the disageeement, there 

were authoritative reports that the two sides were split as to the fne 

details of the law of 'diminsshed capaaity’ in Caaifornia. The defense 

of diminished capacity is the core of Sirhan's case.

"The law provides, in effect, that if the jury beleeves Sirhan 
lacks the mental capacity to 'meam.ingfully and mattuely' premeeitate 
and carry out Sen. Keinnedy’s killnng, he cannot, be sentenced to death 

-- even though he admits the slaying. A battery of defense and pro-

more —
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secution psychologists and psychiatrists have said he lacks this 
capacity. Dr. Olinger and psycChatrist Dr. Seymour Pollack have testified 

that in their opinion, he does have this capacity. .

"Guided by the law as it is given them by Judge Waater, the 
jury will make the final decision.

"Judge Walker has been at work on his instructoons to the jury 
ior the past several weeks. However, each side has the right to offer 
aiditioial suggestions to the jurist at the close of the case,

"Lawyers’ summations and Judge Waaker's instructoons are expected 

to take the remainder oi this weak. It is now expected the jury will get.

the case Monday,

' WEDNESDAY, APRIL 9 -- Sirhan B. Sirhan is being depicted on • ,
poster's distribueed by the Palestine Liberation Orgsansation "as a teroic . 
Arab commando," according to Wiliam Tuohy, Beirut correspondent.for a 

Los Angeles newspaper (Times), it was reported today. .
"Circulation of the posters," wrote Tuohy, "adopting Sirhan as : 

a member of the Palestinian cause, is the most sigiifhc£irt development in 
the Arab reaction to the Sirhan trial, sources here (Beirut) say.

"The trial has been widely reported in the Arab press and 

foiowwed closely, '

"However, because of a decision by Arab governments to adopt a 

hands-off policy on the Sirten case, very little editorial comment has 

been made about the trial.

"One of the few occasions when Arab editorialssss complained '

came when psychiatric testimony at the trial suggested Sirhan had kileed

more —
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Kennedy wlule mennally deranged. .
"SJirOn is not a madman,’ argued one editor. K

”’There has been an awWul lot of testimony at the trial in
Los Angele' about Sirhan’s sanity,’ says one veteran Arab affairs ' >

speeialiot her’e (Beirut), ’but if you go into one of those Palestinian 1
refugee camps in Jordan, you will find a lo-t of people with the same j

mental makeup as Sirhan.’ ]

"The commandos h.ope, in their widely distrbbuted posters, to ;
capitalize on the extremist view that Sirhan was acting rationally on ■

behhaf of the Palestinian gueeillas -- to wipe out a hated enemy.’’ |

In court today, the prosecution in the Sirhan B. ^.rhan clsi ' •

conceded that the accused assassin °f Sen. Robert F. Kennedy i-s siik, J
"but not so sick that h.e could not plan, coolly, carefully and for a long ,

time to murder” the senator, a Los Angeles newspaper (Times) reported. „

’’Opening the sumnmtion of the prosecuuion’s itse again't the
25-year old defendant, Dep. Dist. Atty. David N. Fitts told, the jury -

of five women and seven men: ,

• ’’The state will urge you to return a verdict of murder in tie 

first degree. ’
”In an impressive four-hour sfImmtion delivered entirely withort 

notos, Fitts waved aside isycih.atrCc theory and mo^hatod an imposing 

chronology leading up to the June 5 shooting of Kennedy on rhe eve of 
his victory in Caaifornia's Demoocrtic presideum! primary. ■

more —
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’•As he piled uP the facts one by one, Fitts said they showed, 

a consistent, developing premeeitation to mwrdef Kennedy.”
At one point, reported the newspaper*, Sirlan erupted with 

"He's lynng, he’s lying, he's lying,” as Fitts said the defendant delib- •

erately left his wallet in his car "to avoid identifCcatoon” after the 

Ambaasador Hotel shooting.
Defense'counsel and security offCcers plopped Sirhan back into 

his chair, quieted him and then ushered him out. After cooling off in
an adjacent room for 20 minutes, Sirhan came back to the court room and 

lsstmed quietly but intently as Fitts continued the sumnmtion, the same 

newspaper related. • ,
Another Los Angeles newspaper (Herald-EXaminer) published high­

lights of Fitts’ sumamtion as foioows:
"This tri! commenced on Jan. 7. We have now passed tile three­

month ln:nLverslry. We have he^d tie testimony o” some 90 witnesses
But I suggest to you that for the last three we have departed in some 

measure from the basic premise of this trial — murder. .■

"Murder, and I’LL read it, is the unlawful kiling of a human 

being with malice aforethought. ■
’’Malice may be either expressed or implied. It is expressed 

when the kiling is done outright. It is implied when the kiling results 
from an action involved with wanton disregard for human Ifee.

more —



• • • Weekly Summary #45
Page 12

"I suggest what we are dealing with in this case is expressed 

malice.”

■ Fitts then related what took plaice on June 5 at the Ambaasador

Hotel.
Continued the sumnmlion by Fitts as related in the newspaper::

' "Malice -- let’s go back to that word, It is expressed when 

there i.s manifest intent unlawfully to kill a human being. We have an 

individual recognizing his target, rapidly approaching the target and 

firiig eight shots. '

. "What could be clearer than that?

"What you will be concerned with is whether this individual 

could know that this was a wrong thing. Malice in this way implies the
doing of someehing not socially acceptable, the doing of something wrong.

• "You will be concerned with whether or not this defendant at 

that time was able to appreciate that firing bullets in-to the head of 
another individual is a thing not generally appr:oved of in our community.

’’Did he know if that was a good thing to do, or a bad thing to do? 

It is no more commlicaeed than that.
"The state has asked and will continue to ask that you return 

a verdict of murder in the first degree.

"The theory of murder is.that Sirhan Sirhan premeditated and 

deliberated upon his intent to act. That involves intent to kill. The 

intent to kill i.s something that the defense will, let us say, concede.

more —
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"It is the issue of premeeitation and deliberation that 'the 
defense is primaaily concerned. Premeeitation and deliberation, as 

iistOn^ishei between fiss-aand second-degeee murder, mean some kind 
■ of decision-making process about the act.. It is the weighing of -argu­

ments prO and con, rather than acting on rash impulse.
"The law envisOons the poossillity that an dividual may harbor 

mtJLrr•afire1hought, they (the law) know the thing he is dok^ is wrong 

but he acts so quickly without making the decision as to how he is going 
to act, so that there is no premeedtatOon.

"The laW dOes nOt prescribe -to you to what extent an individual 
might weigh and prreeeitatr before a calculate goal to kill 1s formed.

‘ »The law says this will depend on the situation, and the indivi­
dual -- that a cold, calculated decision to kill may be arrived at ^ihin 
minutes or seconds, depending on the crrumnstnness and the individual.

"In this case, the people suggest to you tot the c^ and calcu­

lated decision to take the Iffe of Robert F. Kennedy had been arrvved at 

lo^ in advance of Sinan's arrival at the Ambassador Hotel. .

"The facts in. the opinion of the prosecution lead linirtlly to 

the conclusion that this defendant did not act in a rash or impulsive 
mamer at the teme he fired the bullet into the brain of Robbtt F.

Kennedy at tehe Ambassador Hotel.

"With respect to his state of mind, we are a^d to trrrpt when 

the defendant tells us he first intended to go to the Ambaasador Hotel

more
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because of the Rafferty party. Some time in the past, he and Kathleen
Rafferty had been in school together. There is no- suggeetion that 
Kathleen Rafferty would have been glad to see Sirhan and one would 

suppose that some years had passed since they had been at school together. 

"Mr. Sirhan i.s 25 years old. He isn't the only young protester.

I view with alarm the protests of the last few years. They alarm me and 

I wonder what will happen a few years from now .when these protesters tske 

our places?

"Sirhan's view i.s shared by many. He is not the only one who 

ia disillusinned. His illusions are shared by many. They are not dis­

illusions -- illuiions, perhaps.
"But he has an absolute right to have opinions not shared by 

the maaority. It is an right to entertain idnau that tMs is n°t the

best of ail possible worlds. ■
"In any event, this i.s Mr. Sirhan. He felt rejected at tie 

Rafferty party. ■

"He is something of a lonerr. He doesn’t want to stay where 

he is not wanted,
"In the light of that, and if Sirhan hated Kennedy as has been 

made clear, and if he felt he wasn’t wanted, why did he stay them?
"But stay he did.

"From the point of view of the assassinate, it doesn't mto 
any difeenoncn whether the senator was going to the ColornLaL Room first 

or the Ambassador Room first. •

more — '
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In one way or the other, he was going both places.
"I suggest it was no fortuiOous cicumistacce that Sirhan waited 

in a PiaCe where at one Wie or another the senator would pass and become 

a target. ■
"AH the logic points to this - his hatred, the ^tebooks, his 

visitirg the ranges, his rapid fire, his inoqoiry at the pantry, tile loaded 

gun. in his belt, the mini-mag amanition, the conduct of the defendant, 

his stataaents after hi.s arrest, the cute way he avoided, identifying hi-­

self.
’’Now with respect to the defendants state of mwd. His testi~ 

why is replete with what I consider to be lees, soae of it demon^rable, 

some not.
’’Anything in this case which would appear to indicate ihat this 

was preaetitatti or ^liberated murder is d^d by to dtftndant, r^rd- 
iess of who said it -- even by those who are trying to help him, who ad­

vanced his best interests i.n this case. .
’We beieeve that the defendant is not divorced fooa the reality 

of his position as a defendant i.n a murder case.
"It has been suggested that this defendant exists i.n a telusicmal 

state.
"The defendant has always had tte hope to get away with Wis.

He knows some peopie don’t like what he has done. This hope i.s alternated

with despair.

more —
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i

"It is conceded by both sides that Mr. Sirhan is not;, a well ’
man. The question is how stuck is hie? The question is what does ’mature’ 
mean? The question i.s what does 'meaningful' mean? .

’’Mature' — old enough to procreate, ripe for picking. Does 
it mean you must have the global view of the world of a great sage or '

philosphhe?? What exactly is ’mature’? /

"What i.s 'meain.ngful'? How much is the individm! required to 
read into hits contemplated act before.it becomes meaningful?

■ "No individual after mature and meaningful reflectoon would 

commit murder. ’ j
■ "Yet murder is commonplace in our society. What are we do do | 

with, inidivdduals who cornamt this? ’

’We deal in a society that i.s still graphing with the solutoons ?

to the problem of crime, still grapping as best it might with what can :

be described as criminal respoonibility. :
’We admt Sirhan is less than the full man. How much less I "

II 
don’t know. He is the man you have seen in court, tne man who testified
on the witness stand eagerly.. .with flair, with intellignnce somewhat 
unusual in criminal courts if you accept my war’d for it.

"The question is, that given the degree of meentai iineess or

diminished capacity if you will that Sirhan has, he yet had the abblity
to harbor malice and maturely and meennngfully, whatever it means to you, ,
ireieditage and deliberate on what it means to take the If! of a fellow 
human being. That is your job." . . ■

* * *
more —-
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THURSDAY, APRIL 10 -- The three defense attorneys for Sirhan. B. 

Sirhan, Grant B. Cooper, Russen E. Parsons and Ernie Zola Berman, today 

offered their summations ir the case callrng for mercy tempered with 

justice for the young Arab. _
According to a report in a Los Angeles newspaper (Times), Cooper 

told the jury:

‘We are not here to free a gUlty man. He is guilty of having 
killed Sen. Robert F. Kennedy. We are not asking for an acquittal.

“On the facts of this case — whether Mr. Sirhan Ikkes it or 

not — Mr. Sirhan. deserves to spend the rest of his Ifee in a pem-tent- 

i-ary.” •

Continued the newspaper: ,

“Cooper, in a detailed explanation of the various aspects of the 
law that Superior Judge Herbert V. Wwlker will give the jury to judge 
the facts by, said that on the basis of both evidence and law, the 
defense ’will ask you to return a verdict of murder in the second-degree.’

“Such a verdict, Cooper stressed, would still enable the jury 
to sentence Sirhan to Ifee i.n prison. 'Because of the conduct that brought
him to the bar of justcee i.n this case,’ Cooper said, “ I wooldn’t want 
Sirhan Sirhan turned loose on society.11 '

Another Los Angeles newspaper (Herald-Examiner) published 

excerpts of remarks by the trio of lawyers and quoted Cooper, in part, 
as foiowws:

more —
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"I propose to discuss with you the law and to attempt to help you 

if I can with what the law is- in this case and then to do my dead-level 
best to apply the law to this case. Not with the idea of turning Sirhan 
Sirhan loose... but to put it iLn proper... and intellgeent perspective.

"Let me explain how your instructions will com©' — Both si.des 
prepare their conception of what they think the law is. We submit them 
to his honor. ..his honor has the last word. He tells us what law he i.s 

going to give you so that when we argue the law to you we wll state it 
truthfully. •

"First, I think you should know what the presumption of inno­

cence is. If after considering all the evidence you entertain reasonable 

doubt as to whether it should be fisst-eegree or second-degree murder, - 

believe his honor wll tell you that it is up to you under the law to give 

the defendant the beneeit of reasonable doubt;

” If there i.s doubt in your mind as to whether it should be 

murder in the second degree or meinlaughter, it woiuld be your duty u^er 

the law to return a verdict of mannlaughter, providing■that you entertain 
reasonable doubt. ■ ’

"A reasonable doubt is not mere possible doubt...It is...you 

the jury say that you cannot feel an abiding conviction to a moral certainty, 
a moral certainty i.s all that i.s required.

"You have been bombarded with the testimoey of experts. An expert 
witness i.s a person who has special skill, knowledge or trainnng... You

more —
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should consider their background of expereence and education and the 
credibility of the education. You are not bound to accept the- testimony 

of any expert,
"On the real, only issue you have before you as to Whether or 

not the defendant had diminished capaacty, the only way that can be

establsshed is by circumstannial evidence. That is tte guts of the whole

case, the whole sole issue in this case.
"You are not permitted to find the defendant guilty.. .un,less 

the proved cirumsancces are not only consists with that the d^ndant 

is guilty of the Crime...but cannot be reconciled with any other rational . 
conclusion. If the evidence is susceptibee to a reasonab>le interpretatoon, 
one of which points to the defendants guilt and the otter which points 

to his innocence, it is your duty to reject ttet which points io guilty 

and accept that which shows his innocence.
"Let’s take motive. Can there by any question in anyone’s mind 

but that hi.s motive was politcaal? '

"When we talk about crime, we talk about the elements of crime. 
Murder has the folOownng elements: Ttere must be tte intent to kill. In

frstt-dgrree murder,. it must be willful, deliberate and preieditated and 

it must be the kiling of a human being. Motive is not an Hemant.

"Was it a mature motive; was it a meaningful motive1 ■

"Let’s take excerpts foom things you have Sard o^r and over 

again. To do away with the government and declare anarchy. Is ttet 

mature thinknngl Is that meaningful thinking 1

more —
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11 In his pronuncimento, he wrote: 'I advocate the overthrow of 
the current"President of the United States of America. I have no definiee ■
plsms yet, but will soon compose some.’ i:s that mature thiikcing? Is -

that meemingful thinking? ■ £
"All murder which is oilful, premeditated and deliberate with 

malice aforethought is murder in the first degree. • ’

"You ma;y assume... and from my point of view it would be iioogical (

.to suggest that this wasn’t a wilful, deliberate and prdmeditatei murder. ।

"But what I want to point out you have wilful, deliberate and pre- ; 

meditatdi killng in manslaughter...That is the law.
"Dellberade means formed or arrived at.. .weighed or considered I

for and against the proper course of action. |

"The word 'prdeedidadioi’ means thought over before-hand.
’’The law doesn't undertake-.to measure prdeeditatron of deHbera- |

tion. ..the true test is not the dime elapsed but the extent of the mature 
and meaniniful refeecdosn. The cold, calculated decision may be arrlvei 

at in a short time.
"Remember... the elements: To form spedifii intent to kill.; 

prdmeditatd and deliberate; reflect upon the gravity of the contemplated 

act.

"If you find that the defendants mental capacity was iimiiishdi 
to the extent that you have a reasonable doubt whether he did meeaLinggully, 

wilfully prdmeditatd and deliberate.. .you cannot find him guldy of minder

more —
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in the first degree. The instruction goes on with respect to harboriig 

malice. •
"The next thing is malice aforethought. If there is malice ^re­

thought, it is not mannlaughter. It has got to be a decision between the 
two degrees of murder.

’One other instructoon that we discussed at length when we ex­
amined you...that is the individual opinion of'each juror. The people 

and the defendant are entitled to the individual opinion of each juror. 

Each one of you is suprmme in determining the facts. Your powers are 
equal even above his honor, in a jury trial. You are the judge of the 
facts.

"The reason we have 12 jurors i.s so that we have 12 individual 

opinions. You must agree before the verdict can be reached.

"You have told us, you will recaai..;that you would not compromise 

just for the purpose of arrivnrg at a verdict... just so you can get home 
eaarier.” '

The same newspaper also publishedexcerpts of comments made by 

Parsons, including remarks on the defendant’s Ifee and his family.
Some excerpts foioow:

"If I may go back to Mrs. Sirhan and her son, she did the best 
she could with this boy.

"He was hurt out here at the race track. He loved horses. The 

fjustratonns mounted up uantl this feioow didn't know what he was doing.

more
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"Here we are with a perfect example of a man who is sick. In 

this field they hardly refer to persons as being 'insane' anymore. If 

you ever had a perfect case, you had it here. Here's a man who wants i° 
stand up and fire the lawyers who are trying to help him.

"You have seen him. One moment he appeal's to he smart as a 

whip. The next he cant tell right foom wrong.
' "I would like this verdict to spell out in every hamet» in 

every Arab deseed and all over Europe, that a man can get justice in 
Ameiica. That i.s neither If! imprsonment nor the death penaaty, becausl 

this casse doesn't warrant it. Not for this poor, sick wretch, no mitter

what he did. ’

■ "Let us make sure that throughout the world, that in every teimet, 

the peopie know that in Arnica you can get justice, whether it is h 

Mississippi or i.n Los Angeles. .

"It is going to take a little courage to return a proper verdict 
in this case, a little courage to see that justice is, done. But it can 

and must be done.

"It will go down i.n history." '

Thu same newspaper also contanned these excerpts from thl sjumma.- 

tion by Berman:

"I want to talk to you speiifically about a thing called trauma, 

Trauna i.s a blow or an insult -- trama to one's personaaity, a blow to 

what makes a person become what he is.

mon —
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««I’m going to talk to you about the traumatic events upon 

Sirhan’s personaaity. From a young boy to the 24-year old man -- what 

it was, step by step, that put him ia the posture which chuted the 

tragedy that blighted our ration." ’

He then cited Sirhan’s relatoons with hi.s father and mother, the 
death of his sister, his flrnkcng out of college, his ^cideut at a horse 

ranch.
Concerning events at the Ambassador Hotel, Berman said, according 

to the newspaper::

"There were bar’s...and mirrors in the Venetian Room. That is 

pretty much of the ntty-gritty in this. There war's mrrors everywhere 
he turned. IMrrors in his home, mirrors in the hotel.

"It was by mirrors that he induced self-hypnosis °r -- what is 

that term the doctor's use — a dissociative state.

"We have no way of knowing over how long aLl of his drinking 

took place, but we do know/ that Sirhan began to feel his drinking and 

decided it was time for him to go home.

"He went to the car three blocks away and suddenly found he was ’ 

too drunk to drive. .
"He saw his gun i.n the back seat and picked it up. He returned

to the Ammbssador to get some coffee. _

. "Al through the theme of the prosecution case i.s premeditatoon 
and planming. We have checked this every way we can.

more



• Weekly Summary #45
Page 24

'One thing is that Sirhan was alone. There was no conspiracy
here, no helpers here, nobody backing him up, no reward for money. This .

was his act alone.
'You must remember that when Sen. Kennedy was making his speech , 

to his foioowers in the Embassy Room...he was to go to a large oversow 

crowd in the Ambassador bairooom on the floor below, and the route t° be 

t den would never have taken the senator and his entourage through the 

pantry.

"At the last moment, somebody changed his mind. There could not 

be any possible knowledgeable wa.tng for the senator, where ^rhan. could 
take a posstion where he would have a pot-shot at him.

"1 take this up because it has to do with the inference that 
Sirhan was lying in wait...waiting for a crack at Kennedy. This does mot

and cannot fit the facts in this case.
"This freahihheess changes the whole history of our coutry and 

possibly of -the world." ■
* * * ■ •
more — •

FRIDAY, APRIL 11 -- If the prosecution i.i the tihm case "get ;
what they warrt" — a verdict of first degree — "the onL.y remaining ques- 

toon will be one of penalty -- death or fe mprSsnraient," according to 

Ron Einato^, staff writer, in a Los /Angeles newspaper (Times).

Continued the an-ti.de:
"That decision would be made by the same jury in a separate 

penalty trud.

more — ■
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1 "Both the prosecution and the defense at that time will have an 

opportsrnty to subimt additional evidence and offer arguments.

"The prosecution's presentation would focus rn any matters which 

tend to aggravate the crime.
"The defense, on the other hand, would seek to get before the 

jury anything which might mitigate -- or favor -— Sirhan's position.
"A major factor during the penalty proceedings may be the proposed 

arrangement early in the trial which would have permitted Sirhan to plead 
guulty to firstdeegree murder with Ifee in prison.

"If Sirhan is convicted of murder i.n the frrstdeegree, that might 
be the best weapon the defense has to save Sirhan's Ifee.

. "Because of this, defense attorneys Grant B. Cooper', Emile Zola 
Berman and Russell E. Parsons most likely will attempt to bring the maater 
to the attention of the jury, possibly by rrmtont foom the district attor­
ney's office — per’hapr even Dist. Atty. Evelle J. Younger -- to testify 
about the plea bargaining. .

"This could present an awkwaod situatoon to the prosecution and 
it already has led to reports that Chef Dep. Dist. Atty. Lynn D. Compton 
and Dep. Dist. Attys. John E. Howard and David N. Fitts will not 'demand' 
the deathpenaaty. ■

"But the death penalty is seldom demanded anyway. . Usually, i.n 
proper cases, juries are 'urged' to bring in such a verdict.

"The prosecution, however, may even fnid it difficult to go that 
far btcaurt it once was wiling to settle for Ifee.

"when Superior Judge Herbert V. Walker rejected the plea agree­
ment, it rprntd the way for the jury to hear ail the evidence in the case.

"And that jury may now decide without any urging foom the pro- .
secution, at least in so many words, that the only penalty for the heinous 
orme of assassinate a possible President of the United States i.s death.

"If the jury votes the death penalty, it could be reduced to liee 
in prison by Judge WOkeo. But a verdict of Ifee imporrnmltrt is binding 
on the court.

"All rtrttrLCtr of death are lutomilicaaly reveewed by the State 
Supreme Court."

more —
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FRIDAY, APRIL 11 -- In court today, Chief Dep. Dist. Atty.
Lynn D. Compton began the prosecution's final summation, and will con­

tinue on Monday. • .

He termed the case "highly overcomplicaeed1' by psycChaaric 
expertise and jolted the jury, composed of seven men and five women, when 

he raised this question, according to a story in a Los Angeles newspaper 

(Times): .
"Did Robert F. Kennedy, a young, highly successful man at to 

peak of his career — a former U.S. attorney general, a senator farom New 
York and a candidate for the presidency of this country — did he breathe 
his last breath on the dirty floor of the Ambbasador Hotel, there with 
the mops and the dirty dishes, did he leave a widow with 11 children, 
because hie favored U.S. support of the State of Israel or because he was 

a substitute father image in some Oedipus complex in Sirhan’s mind?"

The newspaper related that the "defense has offered both throrjre 

as partial explanation of the Palestinisn Arab’s motive in kilinng Kennedy 

last June 5...”

Continued the newspaper': .

’Compton, his voice disdainful as he waved toward a blackboard 
bearing the names of 10 ’so-caieed experts' — psychologists and psychia­
trists called to testify for both sides — said he had thought of erasing 
their names as he rose to speak;, but then changed his mind.

"'I hope,1 he aeeee, 1 that I can ^ase them al from your con- 

iierratOon.’ ■

more — •
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"Compton said the psychiatric testimony had been so confusing 
and corniicting that ’I can be frank to admit right now as I stand here 

that I can't answer the question of what Sirhan's real motive was.’

"Referring to Dr. Bernard 1.. Diamond's testimony that Sirhan •
was in a dissociatiee state induced by the combination of intoxicatoon, 

rage and a ielf-idducid hypnotic trance from starnng -Into hotel mirrors, 

Compton said, w-th thinly veiled contempt: _

"'If you beieeve Dr. Diamond with his mirror act and believe 
Sirhan was in some kind of trance, so that he didn’t know if he was on 

foot ^r horseback, then it would be inhuman to punish him for anything 
at all. .

But if you don't buy it -- like I don’t buy it, and like (deputy 

district attorneys) Jrhn Howard and David Fitts don't buy it — then there's 

nothing left but plain, old irld-broodid first-ieriie miurder. ’

’•Compton implied that the precise definitoon of 'mature and 

meennnngul’ premeedtatoon that has been so much a part of the defense case 

i-s not a legitimaee concern to the jurors because, he sai.d, hi.s office 

deals with about 35,000 felons inch year, and i.n the primeidtatOon behind. • 

aLl. -the 55,0>00 cricks, 'n°ne of it rejects mature and meeaningful judgment. ’ ••

Commtm’s retries were made after a four-hour summaim by Grant 

B. Cooper, definse attorney, who urged the jury to fnid Sirhan gtu.:i.ty of 
second—degeee murder and sentence him to Ifee imprionmient.

Continued the newspaper: -

’’As he W on Thursday, Cooper stressed that the defense did not 

^ SiJhnn >shrdld be given a medal for what he did' -- or, indeed, that

more —
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he should 'ever be turned loose on society.'

"But, Cooper argued, the facts in the case and the applicable 

law make a first degree verdict inappropriate. . •

"Cooper said the defense also would not ask the jury to return 
a manslaughter verdict -- even though, he contended, the evidence could 
warrant it — because he felt that such a request -would simply not be 

discreet in this case.

■ "Cooper said the jury could accept the facts as stated by the 
prosecution, ignore the claims of hypnotic or dissociatvve traces, and 

accept the evidence of 'premeeitation that goes back to at least May 18' — 
three weeks before the killing — and ssill would have to consider whether 

Sirhan*s plans were mature or meeannnful.
. "Conclude his lexgthy summaton, Cooper told the jury, 'I'm 

the last one to speak on behhaf of this defendant. When I sit down no 

voice will, be raised again in-his defense...We pass foom our shoulders to 
yours the responnsbility and the proper fate of Sirhan Sirhan.'"

Late this eveniLng, according to another Los Angeles newspaper 

(Herald-Examiner), the "trial went into extraordinary session...in order 
to excuse" a juror whose father had died. .

Ronald G. Evans was excused by Judge Herbert V. Waaker "and the 
special trial session was held in an araor-vncnoved auXliary courtooom 
in the jail facility atop the Hall of Justice. Sirhan was present and . 

no stranger to the room where the preliminare'es to his soon-toeend murder 
trial took place.
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"Evans., a telpphone company switchboard installer, was not immed­

iately replaced. Judge Walker said'that a successor to the juror would .

be chosen when court convenes Monday morning. , I

’•Caarfornia law requires that a successor to a trial juror be *

chosen by the spin of the wheel. 5

"Evans was the second casualty in the Sirhan jury. The first ,

was IBM computer progrmmer Lawrence K. Morgan, who was dismissed when ’

he suffered a bl.eedi.ng ulcer and had to be hospitalized."

Meeaiwhhle, a young woman who kiieed herself early this week ' 

was identifeed today as a go-go dancer who fggured briefly in the Kennedy 

assassination, police said.

She was Kathy Fulmer, 23, found semi-conscious Monday in a motel.

She died of an overdose of Seconal a half-hour later. ’

Said a Los Angeles newspaper (Times): . .

"Miss Fulmer came forward when investggators were seeking a girl
who wore a polka dot dress in the Ambassador the night- the senator was 

sho-t. She wore a polka dot scarf- and had been at the hotel., .
’’But, as the investigation developed,- neither- Miss Fulmer nor ’ 

any of several young women wearing polka dot garments at the assassination 
scene had any bearing on the case.
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Note to editors: Because of the widespread interest in 
the assassinatoon of Senator Robert F. Kennedy in Los ■
Angeles on Wednesday, June 5, 1968, and proceedings  ̂
cou?t, the Office of Los Angeles County District Attorney 
Erelle J. Younger i.s publishing a weekly summary of the 
case. This is the 45th summary, and °thers will be f° 
release on subsequent Wecdnesdays.

MONDAY, APRIL 7 -- Dr. Leonard B. Olinger,. instructor in 

abnormal psychology at USC, said today in court that he disagrees with 
two previous clinical rsychoioggsts’ diagnosis of Sirh^ B. Sirh^ as 

a raranoid psychotic with schizophrenic ruction.
According to one Los Angeles newspaper (Herald-Examiner), 

Olinger "believes Sirhan is not seriously mentally ill. So concerned 
did he become by claims of defense alienists that the young Arab does 

suffer serious mental impairment, he v^uateered. his services to Dep. 

Dist. Arty. John Howard.,’

Continued the nnasrarni‘:

"As Dr. Olinger sees Sirhan:
"He is...relatively intact...hardly impaired, gifted in cnr;lin 

imaginative? ways, capable of seeing the overview, proceed!^ i-n a highly 

organized method, giviig a h^m^ious kind of performance.
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I”...There is an indication that there is some measure of . 
control over emotions, good ahblity to make judgments, even if these 

do not correspond to the judgments of other people, remarkably little 

distortion of the maaeeial or of the individual's perception of the 
outside world.. .Despite his fmidamentay Terrences in political views, 

he holds to them on the basis of ideas, notoons and value systems that 
are important to him...There are some indices of character disorder. 

Most indices are of neurosis.. .especcally hysteria and obsessive expul­

sion. There are few indices of schizophrenia (divdded personnaity).‘
. "Asked to pin a sppecfic label on Sirhan, Dr. Olinger summ^ 

up, ’He would be a borderline schizophrenia with principally nsurotrc 
features... suffering foom pscudonnecuotie schizophrenia.

"Howard then asked the psychologist if x June 5, 1968, whan 

Sirhan admittedly shot Kennedy at th? Ambassador Hotel, he had. the 
capaablity to ’ meaningfully and maturely premeeitate and carry out the 

kilinng.' . ■ ■ ■
"Dr. Olinger replied:
"’The (psychological) test^ strongly suggest that he xuld.’" 

In a report in another Los Angeles newspaper (Times), Olinger 

told the jury he beieeved that the two previous clinical psychologists, 
Drs. Haatin M. Schorr and O. Roddeick Richardson, aaa1?oachce<3- Sirh^ with 

preconceived notions °f what they ^uld ^nd, hmwi^ they were testng 

the man who kiUed Kennedy. He also indicated the pair "subsequentyy

more
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interpreted test data in light of their expectations,” said the newspaper..
Continued the article: ’
"in disputing Schorr's diagnosis, Olinger said Sirhern was not' 

showing paranoid tendencies hut common sense when he gave affrmative 

answers to these true-false statements:
'" 1 know who is responsible for my trouble.'
‘‘1 am sure 1 am being talked about.' ■

’” 1 have been in trouble with the law.’

■ ‘‘I have enemies who wish to harm me. :

"' 1 tend to be on guard around people who ar>e friendlier than
I expect them to be.' - ■ .

i’1 feel uneasy indoors.'

"As Sirhan had been jaieed since June 5, Olinger said, his 

positive answers to all these indicated that h.e 'had good contact with 
reality: and that his suspicions weren't paranoid but all too true."

(The Los Angeles Herald-Exsminer noted that Olinger "added that 

it was his belief that neither Dr, Schorr nor Dr.-Richardson had given 

sufficient weight to the fact that Sirhan has been jaieed for several 
months and faces a capital murder chargee i.n evaluating hi.s tests.

("Sirhan has not seen the sun, nor the outdoors since early 

last June when he was transferred from the County Central Jail to an 

isolatoon cell i.n the Hall of Justice.")
- Continued the Times report:

more----
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”... the effect of Olinger’s testimony on the jury, while 
difficult to determine exactly, was hardly-galvanizing. For more than 
a month they have Isteneed to such psychiaaric verbal shorthand as ’G- 

pm'me response,’ ’smaH animal movemint,’ !ininiiate movemmnl, ’ ’aarg-c. 

human movement,’ ’pure form response,’ ’aarge M and s'H fm, 1 *aarge F 

and aittae c° and ’TH column.’
"It is debatable how efficiently the jurors have been able to 

translate sUch arbitrary terms in their meean’ngful emooional equivalents. 

Bit the mem effort has exacted a toll that was apparent Monday as they 
Is^eed to still more of the same with faces that ranged a gamut of 

expression from boredom to stupefaction.

"Olinger enunciated what he termed the 10 basic precaution.. c 

be observed in administerngg psychological tests — 'mo of which, he made 

clear, he felt Schorr and Richardson had violated.
"These were ’the law of persirnony, or Occam’s R^oo* — giving 

the simplest, most factual interpretatoon of data — and the ‘Erocrase-r’ 
Fallacy. ’ This last derives from Greek mythology, in vzhich the robber 
Procrustes thrust his vrcims into a bed snd th^ strechhed the slior. C...... S 
to fit the bed or lopped off the tall ones at the head or kne^.

"Ripples of amusement altennated with mutters of '^fusten in 3.;’3 
hrurtorom as testmoony translated into talk of how tete or tea' interprc- 
tatoon was ’fiteed for a Procrustean bed.’

"Sirhan, meanwwhle, seemed frankly disinee.eeseda. for most of 
the day.11

In cross-examination by Grant B. Cooper, defend attorney, 
Olinger said he contacted the District Attorney's Office and offered cow- 
sultatioi. .

Later, Chief Dep. Dist. Atty. Lynn D. Compton "teld. reporters 
that Olinger had not wanted to testify, but later agreed ..after he had 
examined the defense conssutants’ test results,’’ reported the Times.

more —
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TUESDAY, APRIL 8 -- Both the prosecution and defense rested * 
today in the trial of Sirhan B. Sirhan, the accused assassin of Sen. 

Robert F. Kennedy, as the final prosecution witness, Leonard. B. Olinger, 
psychologist, compPeted testifyng.

As Olinger, the 90th witness, spoke, Sirhan, according -o a 

Los Angeles newspaper (Times) "betrayed not a flicker of intems-t as 

defense counsel Grant B. Cooper fanSshed cross-examination.11
The newspaper added that Olinger was the last of 10 psychologists 

and psychSatrists to testify and his "opinion differed sharply not only 
with the eight expert witnesses for the defense but also with the pro­

secution’s star witness, psychhaarist Seymour Pollack.
Related the newspaper:

"Defense testimony painted Sirhan as a paranorid psychotic ,
with schizophrenic reaction, unaware’s of and ynable to control his actions 

when he shot Kennedy last June . 5. .
"Pollack termed Sirhan a paranoid personality with a borderline 

schizophrenia but held that his mental iinness did not reduce his capacity 
to maturely and menaa•igfuLl.ly prnmenitltn and carry out murder.

"Olinger, while agreeing with Pollack that Sinhon was not a 

victim of iim.gishni capacity in his planning of Kn]gaedyLs death, diagnosed 

Sinham as a ’pseudo-neurotic shh.zop}henac’ — which he said is not a 

recognined clinical late! for real psychosis but a mem descriptive tern 

for a condition much less serious than nvng Pollack had found.

 ̂«>>. t »W ■».—«<• "M
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"Olinger flushed frequently under a blistering cross-examination 
by Cooper, who sought to draw an admission that Olinger solicieed Sis 
way into the case only last month. '

"Olinger said he teeeshoned the prosecution shoofly after ■ 

psychologist Martin M. Schorr began testimony. Olinger said he dis­

agreed with infe.ennces in Schorr's testimony he had read in the newspapers.

"Citing Olinger's own testmony Monday about the care psychol- 
oogsts must take -Ln interereting clinical tests, Cooper asked if Olinger 
hacdnt violated his own precautions in forming atttludes abrlt the Sirh^ 
case on the basis of newspaper accounts. Olinger said he hacdnt.

"Citing Olinger's testmnony that Schorr and other psychologists, 

knowing whose tests they were evaluating, might have interpreeed the tests 

i.n a way that matched their preconceived notions about;- Sirhan, Copper 

then asked Olinger if.he hadn't also known i.n advance whose tests he 

was interereting and whether he hacdnt been slightly inflfncceU by that . '

knowledge.

"’oome,1 said Olinger. |
"Cooper also launched an oblique attack on Olinger's professional 

qulaifCcatOins as compared to those of defense witnesses, two of whom, 

Cooper noted, were professors of psychiatry at USC and UC Berkeley.
Olinger is a part-time instructor i.n abnormal psychology i.n USC’s extension 1 
divisoon.

"Copper asked repeatedly why Olinger had phoned the prosecution ,
rather than the defense, and Olinger replied, "I beleeved I could be of 
help.1 '

more —
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’’’Not to the defense,’ Cooper interjeceed.
• :Not particularly to the defense,’ Olinger said.

"To the prosecution?’ Cooper asked., , ’
"Not particularly to the prosecution,’ said Olinger.

‘’’Then whom did you believe you could help?’. Copper asked.

"’I thought I could help justice,' Olinger replied.
’’’in giving information to the prosecution?’ asked Cooper.

"’In this case, yes,! Olinger said."
The newspaper noted that ’’Olinger’s appearance was the caps-tone , ।

of more than a month's obscure, technical psychiatric jargon, in which 

both the defense and the prosecution waged a hot war of psychiatry 

attritinn. ■ ■
"The defense sought to command the jury's respect for their ’

case by stunning them with expert witnesses of ^th ^lid and/ir glitter­
ing reputation and with no fewer than six clinical psychologists who , 

corroborated .and confimeed yet again the finings of Phe others. - I
The prosecution chose, with its W experts, to try to deflate 

the defense theories with sober, logical outlines of verifiable fact. 
In cross-examination of defense- experts they inched, painstakingly, some— 

Wies middeenngly, over and over the same tny technical pomts. -
"The stated aim was to fnnd and enlarge weak spots ±n the 

ornate psychiatric facae eiectee by the defense.
"But the more likely aim appeared, to be to thoroughly sicken 

the jury on all psychiatric testimony, pushing jurors from confusion •

more —
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through boredom and to such exasperation that they might wave aside , 
all expert testimony and weigh: the case solely on these feet’:

"That Sirhan hated Zionism and its allies, wrote of his 
intention to kill Kennedy, did so and isn’t sorry.

"As the prosecution prepared its iiml arguments, Chief Dep. 

DiSt. Atty. Lynn D. Compton confjLrmed what has been common knowledge 

since early February -- that the prosecution will not press for the 
death penalty for Sirhan. Nor will they ask the jury not to impose i-t.’*

Today’s session in court took place only in the morning, Que t° 
an inchhmfcers meeting on Judge .Herbert V. Waaker's instructoons to 

the jury. . ■
Reported, a Los Angeles newspaper (Herald-Exsminer)':

"Dist Atty. John B. Howard said that part of the delay was 

caused by procedwral matters and part by a disagreement over proposed 

initructOoni to the jury.
"While neither side would comment on the disagreement, there 

were authooitative reports that the two sides were split ci to tile fine 
details of the law of 'diminshhed capacity* in GaCifiriic. The defense 

of diminished capacity i.s the core of Sirhan's case.
"The law provides, in effect, that if the jury beleeves SSirhsn. 

lacks the mental capacity to 'meainingfully and ma.au?ely' premeditate 
and carry out Sen. Kennedy’s kilinng, he cannot be sentenced to death 

— even though he admits the slaying. A battery of defense and pro-

ffr
.R
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section psychologists and psychiatrists have said he lacks this 
capacity. Dr. Olinger and psychiatrist Dr.- Seymour Pollack have testiieed 
that in their opinion, he does have this capaccty. ’ '

"Guided by the law as it is. given them by Judge Walker, the 
jury will make the final decision. ■

"Judge Walker has been at work on his initruitioni to the jury 
ior the past several weeks. However, each sidle has the right to oiier 

cdceLtioncl suggestions to the jurist at the close of the case.

"Lawyers’ sumaaaions and Judge Waker's instructoons are eXpected 

to take the remainder oi this week. It iLs ni)w expected the jury will get
the case Monday,

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 9 — Sirhan B. Sirhan i.s being depicted on • 

poster’s distriuueed by the PCl.estOne Liberatoon- Orgs^zation "as a heroic 

Arab commando," according to Wiliam Tuohy, Beirut correspondent for a 

Los Angeles newspaper (Times), it was reported today. .
"Circulation oi the posters,” wrote Tuohy, "adopting Sirhan as 

a member oi the Palestioiao cause, i.s the most sigoificcot development in 

the Arab reaction to the Sirhan trial, sources here (Beerut) say.

"The trial has been widely reported-in the Arab press md 
foiowwed closely.

’’However, because oi a decision by Arab governments to adopt a 

hands—oii policy on the Sirhan case, very little editorial comment has 
been made about the trial. ’

"One oi the few occasions when Arab editorialisss complained . *

• came when psychiatric tesiimooy at the trial suggested Sirhan had kmed

more —



4Weekly Summary #45
Page IO.

Kennedy wMle mennally deranged. j
"’Sirhan is not a madman,’ argued one editor. .

"’There has been an awful lot of testimony at the t^al in g 

Los Angeles about Sirhan's sanity,’ says one veteran Arab affairs h

speeiaaist here (Beerut), 'but if you go into one of those Palestinian j
reUugee camps i.n Jordan, you will find a lot of people w±th the s^e |

mental makeup as Sirhan.’ I
"The commandos hope, i.n their widely distributed poster’s, to .

capitalize on the extremist view that Sirhan was acting rationally on j 
behhlf of the Palestinian guurillas -- to wipe out a hated enemy.’’ |

In court today, the prosecution in the Sirl^n B. Sirhln iisr ' | 

conceded th.it the accused assassin of Sen. Robert F. Kennedy is ^k .

"but not so sick that he could not plan, cooly, carefully and fw a long 

time to murder" the senator, a Los Angeles nrwspipei (Times) reported. ;

"Opening the sumnmaion of the prosecution's iise against the
25-year old defendant, Dep. Disst. Atty. David N. Fitts told, tile juy

of five women and seven men: .

"’The state wll uigr you to return a verdict of murder in tte

first degree.’
•In an impressive, four-hour surmaion delivered entirely ^ut 

notes, Fitts waved aside isyc]hLltrCc theory and merd^led an imp°sing 

chronology leading up to the June 5 shooting of Kennedy on the eve of 
his victory iLn Califoinil’s Demiccitii presidentm-al primary.

J

more —



. " • Weekly Summary #45
Page 11

"As he piled up the facts one by one, Fitts said they showed, 

a consistent, developing premeedtatoon to mw^er Kene<dr.« '
At one point, reported the newspaper,, Siriten erupted with '

«He*s lynng, he’s lynng, he's lying,” as Fitts said the defendant delib- :

erateiy left his wallet in his car "to avoid identifccatoon” after the 

Ambassador Hotel shooting.
Defense counsel and security offccers plopped Sirhan back into 

his chair, quieted him and then ushered him out. After cooling off in 
an adjacent room for 20 minutes, Sirien c^e back to tie court room and ' 

ist.tened quietly but intently as Fitts continued the summation, the s1^ .

newspaper related. ■ .

Another Los Angeles newspaper (Herald-Sxsminer) publihhed high­

lights of Fitts’ summation as follows: : .

"This trial commenced on Jan. 7. We have now passed tie thr^- 

month anniversary. We have heard tie testamony of some 90 witnesses. 

But I suggest to you that for the last three we have departed in some 
measure from the basic premise of this trial — prefer.

"Murder, and I’ll read it, is the unlawful kiHeni of a human . 

being with malice aforethought.
"Milice may be either expressed or implied. It is expressed 

when the kilinzg is done outright.. It i.s implied when the killng results
foom an actio on involved with wanton disregard for human Ife. •

more —
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"I suggest what we are dealing with in this case is expressed 

malice."

Fitts then related what took place on Junie 5 at the Ambassador 

Hotel. ' •
Continued the summaaion by Fitts as related -Ln the newspaper*: 

"Malice — let’s go back to that word, It is expressed when 

there is manifest intent unlawfully to kill a human being. We have an 

individual recogniznng his target, rapidly approaching the target and 

firing eight shots.
"Wat could be clearer than that?

"Wat you will be concerned with is whether this individual 

could know that this was a wrong thing. Malice -Ln this way implies the 
doing of something not socially lcceptabl.e, the doing of something wrong.

• "You will be concerned with whether or not this defendant at 

that time was able to appreciate that firnng bullets into the head of 
another individual is a thing not geneeaHy approved of in our comnmunty.

"Did hie know if that was a good thnng to do, or a bad flung to do? 

It is no more commlicaeed than that.
"The state has asked and will continue to ask that you return 

a verdict of murder in the first degree.

"The theory of murder i.s that Sirhan Sirhan premeedtated and 

deliberated upon his intent to act. That involves in-tent to kill. The 

intent t;o kill is someehing that the defense will, let us ^y, conced.e.

more — . :
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"It is the issue of premeeitation and deliberation that the 
defense is primarily concerned. Premeeitation and deliberation, as 

iistOguiShhsd between fistt-md second-degree murder, mean some kind . 

■ of decision-making process ateut the act. It is the weighs if argu­
ments pro and con, rather than acting on rash impulse.

"The law envisions the possibility that an iiriividual may harbor 
malice aforethought, they (the law) know the thnig hie is d^ing is wrong 

but he acts so quickly without making the decision as to how he is going 
to act, so that there is no premeditatOon.

"The law does not prescribe to you to what extent an individual 

might weigh and premeedtate before a calculate goal w kill is formed.

"The law says this will depend on the situation, and the iniivi- 
dual — that a cold, calculated decision to kill may be arrvvei at within 

minutes or seconds, depending on the crrumnsanness and the io.iividua.l.

"In this case, the people suggest to you that the rol-d and calcu­
lated deriiOon to take the Life of Robert F. Kennedy had been arrvved at 
long in advance of Sirhan's aprival at the Ambassador Hotel.

"The facts in. the opinion of the prosecution lead logically to 
the conclusion that this defendant did not act in a rash or impulsive 
manner at the time he fieed the bullet into the brain of Rohitt F.

Kennedy at the Ambassador Hotel. '

"With respect to his state of mind, we are ^^d to arctpt when 

the defendant tells us he first intended to go to the Ambassador Hotel

more —
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because of the Rafferty party. Some time in the past, he and Kathleen
Rafferty had been in school together. There is no suggeetion that 
Kathleen Rafferty would have been glad to see Sirhan and one would 

SUppOse that some years had passed since they had been at school together. 
"Mr. Sirhan is 25 years old. He isn't the onl.y young protester.

I view with alami the protests of the last few years. They alamm me and 

I wonder what will happen a few years from now when these protesters take 

our places?

"Sirhan’s view is shared by many. He is not the onl.y one who ‘ 

its. disillss°oned. His illss°ons are shared by many. They are not dis- 

illssoons -- illss°ons, perhaps.
"But he has an absolute right to have opinions not' shared by 

the majority. It is all right to entertsdn id^ that this is n°t the

best of ail possible worlds.
"In'any event, this is Hr. Sirhan. He felt rejected at the 

Rafferty party. , . .

"He ils someehing of a lonev, He doesn’t want to stay where 

he is not wanted.

"In the light of that, and if Sirhan hated Kennedy as has been 

made clear, and if he felt he wasn't wanted, why did he stay them?
"But stay hie did.

"From the point of view of the assassinatoon, it doess't mate 
any diferennce whether the senator was going to the Colornlal Room first 

or the Ambassador Room first.

more
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In one way or the other, he was going both places. .
"I suggest it was no fortuiOous ciccmnsancee that Sirhan waited 

in a place where at one time or another the senator would, pass and become 

a target. ,
"All the logic points to this — his hatred, the notebooks, his 

visiting the ranges, his rapid fire, hi.s inquiry at the pantry, the loaded 

gun i.n his belt, the mini-mag ammnition, the conduct of the defiant, 

his statements after his arrest, the cute way he avoided identfyyigg hiLi— 

self.

’ "Now with respect to the defendant's state of mind. His testi— 
mony is replete with what I consider to be lees, some of it demoontrable, 

some not.
"Anything in this case which would appear to indicate that this 

was prewditaeed or deliberated murder i.s denied by tile defendant, regard— 
iess of who said it — even by those who are trynng to help hm, who ad— 

vanced his best interests i.n this case.
"Wfe believe that the etfeene.ant is not divorced from the reality 

of his position as a defendant in a murder case.
"It has bttn s^gested that this defendant exists in a delusional 

state.

"The defendant has always had the hope to get away with thi^ 
He knows some people don't like what he has done. This hope is alternated

with despair.

moire —
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"It is conceded by both sides that Mr. Sirhan is not a well ' 
man. The question is how sick is he? The question is what does ’mature’ 
mean? The question i.s what does 'meaningful' mean??

’’Mature*  -- old enough to procreate, rppe for picking.. Does 

it mean you must have the global view of the world of a great sage or 
phiosspphef? Wat exactly i.s ’mature??

* * * 
more —

"Wheat is 'meaningful?? How much i.s the individual required to 
read into his contemplated act before it becomes meeanngful?

"No individual after mature and meaningful reflection would 

commit murder?. .

"Yet murder i.s commonplace in our society. Wiat are we do do 

with indivdduals who commit this?
"We deal in a society that i.s still grapping; with the solutoons 

to the problem of crime, still grappling as best it might with Wat can 

be described as criminal responnibility.

"We adMt Sirhan i.s less than the full man. How much less I 

don't know. He is the man you have seen in court, the man who testifeed

on the witness stand eagerly., .with flair’, with iitelligince somewhat 
unusual in criminal courts if you accept my word for it.

"The question is, that given the degree, of meenall ilneess or 

diminished capacity if you will that Sirhan has, hie yet had the abblity 
to harbor malice and maturely and meeanngfully, whatever it means to you, 
premeddtate and deliberate on what it means to take the Iffe of a feioow 
human being. That i.s your job."




